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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP A oo e Tower-B

Chartered Accountants Sector - 42, Sector Road

Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana, India
Tel : +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of VECC Health Care Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of VLCC Health Care Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31,2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of QOther Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the °‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 39 in the financial statements, which describes the possible effect of
uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s financial performance as assessed by
the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

5.R. Balllbal & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd, Cffice : 22, Camac Straet, Block "B, Ard Floor, Kelkata-700 016
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other ircegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the [standalone] financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether ‘due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (I1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our gudit;

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive [ncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as specified under section 133 of the Act;

{e¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as of,cmes

March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; &
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

(2) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid
/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 28(i) to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Fi egistration Number: 101049W/E300004

per:Yogemiler Seth

Partner h}l\

Memtbership Number: 094524
UDIN: 21094524AAAACR2065
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: August 6, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: YVLCC Health Care Limited (“the Company™)

i. {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the name of
the company.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

ii. According fo the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented

upon.

iv, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities
given have been complied with by the company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies {(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable,

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the education service and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the same,

vii. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there have been significant
delays in large number of cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Amount under

Period for which the Forum, where the
Name of the Statue Nature of dues dispute (Rs. amount relates dispute is pending
Lakhs)
Assessment years _
Commissioner of Income
Income Tax Act, [961 Income Tax 53.50 2011-12,2014-15, tax, (Appeals)
2015-16
Assessment years Income Tax Appellate
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 11.39 | 2012-13t02013-14 | Tribunal
Assessment years
2005-06, 2006-07 .
; ’ Commercial Tax
Kerala value Added tax Sales tax 2009- 10,2010~
34.14 11,2011-12,2012-13 Officers, Ernakulam
and 2014-15
Assessment years . -
Joint Commissioner
UP Value added tax Sales tax 61.36 2009- 10,2010-11 (Appeals), Ghaziabad
2013-14
Assessment year 2013- | Deputy Commissioner
Maharashtra value added tax | Sales fax 10.05 | 14 (Appeal), Mumbai
. Appellate Tribunal of
ggr\gr?ﬂla’ef{{ 72001 Commercial Tax,
Luxury tax Act,1988 Luxury tax . : i Bhopal,
21.93 | April 01,2015 to Apnellate Tribunal of
March 31,2016 ppetiate "ribuna’ ot
’ Commercial Tax, Delhi
Commissioner Customs
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 136 OA;S essment Year 2004- & Central Excise
: (Appeal -1), Delhi
Commissioner Customs
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 138 ggf gs;sén;g : ;: ;a:m 2012“ & Central Excise
’ (Appeal -1), Noida
Commissioner Customs
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 833 2AOS lsgsf(]m;; f ;j gglizo 12- & Central Excise
’ (Appeal -1), Lucknow
Custom excise and
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2008- Service Tax Appellate
6.96 | 09t02015-16 . .
Tribunal, Chennai
Assessment vear 2011~ Commissioner of custom
Finance Act,1994 Service tax Y & Central Excise
0.84 | 12t02013-14 )
(Appeals), Cochin
Assessment vear 2008- Commissioner of custom
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 1.13 | 09 t0 201 l-]); & Central Excise
’ (Appeals), Kolkata
. . Assessment year 2014- | Deputy commissioner,
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 0.29 | 15t02016-17 CGST, Amritsar
Assessment vear 2013- Commissioner Customs
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 57.29 Y & Central Excise
14 10 2016-17
{Appeal), Kanpur
. Commissioner Customs
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 9.06 April 2013 to June & Central Excise

2017

{Appeal), Pune
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viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the records examined by
us, the Company has not defaulted in respect of repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government, However, during previous year Company had availed
moratorium for repayment of Principal and Interest from March 01, 2020 as per as per RBI circular
RB1/2019-20/186 DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020. Refer Note 13(a)
to the standalone financial statements

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way term loans for the purposes for which they were
raised.

X Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of

the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

Xit. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards

Xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

XV, According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

XVi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
IGAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 21094524AAAACR2065

Place: Gurugram
Date: August 6, 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VLCC HEALTH CARE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Aet, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of VLCC
Health Care Limited (“the Company™} as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by 1CAIL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intermnal control stated
in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Fir egistration Number: 101049W/E300004

N

per Yogeﬁkr Seth

Partner

Membership Wumber: 094524
UDIN: 21094524AAAACR2065
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: August 6, 2021




YLCC Health Caxe Limited
— Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 R f
CIN No.-U74859DL1996PLC032542

[Z 1 in INR Lakhs unless otherwive stated)
. Notes As at Asat )
- March 31, 2021 March 31, 2820
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
- Property, plant and equipment 5 5448 6,236
- Capital work in progress 5 27 27
Othet Intangible assets 6 200 273
Right-of-use asseis 29 12,605 16,257
Financlul assets;
Investments T(a) 11,183 11,183
Loans - 7ib) 790 661
OCther financial assets T(e) 74 141
Income tax assets (net) la 43 - 391
Dreferred tax assets (net) 16 2,719 2719
Cither non-current assets 9 46 58
33,531 37,946
IT. Current assets .
- Invemtories 8 . 2,085 2,420
Financial assets; i ’
_ Trade receivablas Fi5]) 221 218
Loans i) 443 334
Cash and cash equivalenis Hd) 2,369 369
- Other financial assets Tle) 623 144
Other current assets 9 125 291
5,866 3,976
_ Tatal Assets (I+]11) 39,97 41,922
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
_ I11. Equity
Equity share capical 10 3,767 3,767
B Other equity 1t 161 972
- Total Equity 1,924 4,733
~ LIABILITIES
TV. Non- eurrent liabilities
Contract Liabilities 12 895 §,054
Financial liabilities:
Borrowings 13(a) 2,241 2,256
Leuse lisbilities 29 11,280 12,592
Other financial linbilities 13{c) 103 100
- Provisions 14 543 636
Total non- current liabilities 15,062 16,638,
V. Corrent Habilites
Cantract Liabilities 12 5,948 ’ 4,568
Financial liabilities .
Barrowings , 13(w) 1,320 1,746~
Lease lishilities 29 3,211 4858
_ Trade payables .
-total outstanding duss of micro and small enterpgscs; 13ib) 26 164
=total oPEtandlng dues of creditors other than micro and small 1267 7,688
enterprises 13
Other financial liabilities 13c) 1,692 1,066
Pravisions 14 495 147
Other current liabilities 15 447 8
20,407 20,545
-~ " Tatal Liabilities : 35,469 37,153
Total equity and Habilities (TI+1V+V) ' 39,397 41,322
B Summary of Significant Aceounting policies 21 .
- The accompanying notes are an insepral part of these financial statements.
Ar per our report af even dafe
- For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP - For and on behaif of the Board of Directors /—
—- Chancrc-l Acoquutants of VLCC Heulth Care Limited
idpation Number:101049W/EI00004 @%‘Jé\% U/"'{ 04- / ‘L_
Juyant Khosta Mukesh Ll.llllrn
_ banaging Director Chairman
DIN No. (08321843 DM No.00296830

Membership Wh. : 94524 _ 'ﬁ’f L

Pluew: Gorugram
Date: Angust 06, 2021

Narim]er Kumar
Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Membership Mo. : FCS 3594




VLCC Health Care Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2021
CIN'No.-U748%9DL1996FPLC082842

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the yearended  For the year ended
i March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

REVENUE -
Revenue from coniracts with customers 17 19,454 34,443
Other incomne 18 2995 52
Total income (T) 22,449 34,493
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 20 3,267 4,522
Purchase of stock-in-trade : 21 254 882
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories of stock-in-trade 21 176 (154)
Employee benefits expense 22 7,078 10,993
Other expenses 25 4232 10,135
Total expenses (11} 15.007 26,378
Eariings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 2,442 8,117
(EBITDA) (L= (-1)
Finance income (IV) 19 92 104
Finance costs (V) 23 3,068 3,671
Depreciation and amortization expense (VI) 24 5,201 5,801
"Loss before tax (VID= (HI+IV-V-VI) (735) (1.251)
Tax expense:
Current tax 16 - -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 16 - -
Total tax expense (VIII) - -
Loss for the year (IX)= (VII-VIIT) . (735) (1,251}
Other Comprehensive Income 25(a)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Re-measurement gains/ {losses} on defined benefit plans (refer note 32) (76) i

(if) Income tax credit/(charge) of above item - -
Other Comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (X) (76) 1
Total Comprehensive loss for the year (XI)= (IX+X) (811) {1,250}
Loss. per share: (INR) 26 '
Basic, computed on the basis of profit attributable to equity holders (1.95) (3.32)
Diluted, computed on the basis of profit attributable to equity holders {1.95) (3.32)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date -
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Ditectors
Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited 04, /] Jr‘"
n Number:101049W/E300004 M/ /
@l g ; \ JE
Jayant Khosla Mukesh Luthra

Yogendai; Seth Managing Director Chairman
Parmer DIN No. 08321843 DIN No.00296830

Membership No. : 94524
\ P "k?
Narinder Kumar
Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Membership No. : FCS 3594

Place: Gurugram
Dates August 06, 2021




VLCC Health Care Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN No-U74899DL1996PLCOS2842

{4 amountx In INR Lakhs tnless othenvive stared)

Particubars For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash low from operating activities
Profit! (loss) before tax (735) (1,251 +
Adjustnems o reconzils profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plont and equipment and amortisation of’ 5201 5501
intangible assets and right-of-ute asters ™
Provisiun for doubi ful trde receivables 150 55
(Profith loss on sake of property, plant and equiprmest e f¥i) 19
Financs costs 3,068 3,671
Advonces written off kx] Pl
Lease concessions {1,924) -
Liabilitees no longer required written back {4313) -
Gain en derecognition of lease liability {112) -
Financa [ncume {51) {104)
Unrealised foreipn exchange fgain)/ loss {9 29
Dperating profit before workiog eapital changes 5,141 8,246
Movements in werking copitut:
([h Vi in tradk payubles und viber finoneisl ligbilities 1,335 {1,458)
(Drcerease)f inceease in provisions 181 {34)
D ! (i ) in trade receivables, loans and other finencinl ussets (589} 98
Decreasef {increase) in inventorics 335 (402)
Decrensef (increase) in nther assets 171 21
1,433 2,007)
Ciish generated from operations 6574 6,239
Dircet taxnes paid {ne1 of refumls) (48} (1)
WNet cash flow from/ (used In) operuting activitics (A) 6,526 6.171
Cash fow from lavesting activites: '
Proceeds from sale of property, plnt and equipment 5t 85
Purchase of property. plant ansd equipment includieg Capital advance (5063 (729}
Purchase of Non-Current Investments [ (838)
Inkerest Received U] 12
{[nvessment) Proceeds from Bank: Deposits ] N
Net eash generated/ {used) in investing activities (B) {374) (1477}
Net cash flow from financing activities:
Proceails from long-ferm Gomowings 1,064 700
Repayments of long-term borrowings (745) (1.186)
Moverment in Cush Credits (Net) (227) 19
Repayment of leage [iability (1.178) 2.21%)
Interest paid (3.068) (36211
Net cash generatedf {used) from fipanciog activides (C) [4,152) (6,779}
Netincreasef (decrease) in cash and cash eqoivalents (A + B+C) 1,000 (2,085)
Cash and cash squivalens at the beginning of the year I6g 2,454
Cash anil cash equivakents at the end of the year 1,369 369_
Companents of cash and cash equivalents
Bulances with banks:; .
= 00 CURrent ascount 1,016 215
- deposits with original maturity o bess than three moniths - 9
Cash on hand * 649 100
Cheques on hand 251 35
Credit card receivables 453 L0
Total cosh and cash equivalents [refer note 7{d}] 2389 369

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accumpanying notes ane an intepral past of thesy financial statcments,

As per our report of even date

Far 5.1 Batlibok & Assodiates LLP For and on belalf of the Bourd of Directors

Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited
[CAl Firm Registratinn Mamber: L01049W/E3MM004 Wﬁ
Jayunt Khosla
Managing Directar

DIN No. 0832 1§43

o

Group Chief Financial Officer and Company
Membarship No. : FCS 3594

Memberzhip Wo?; 94524

Blace; Gurugram
Date: August 06, 2021

Secretary

(/

i

Mukesh Luthra
Chairmon
DIN No.D0296430




VLCC Health Care Limited

Statement of Changes in equity for the yeur ended March 31, 2021 1
CIN No.-U74399DL1996PLC0OS 2842

(AN tmounts iu INR Lukhys unless othenvise stated)

4 2, Equity Share Cnpital [refer note 10]

Particutars Mumber of Amount
shures {in
Lalhs)
As at April 81, 2019 i 3,767
Add : Issue of equity share capital - -
As ot March M, 2020 177 1,767
As at April 01, 2020 377 37
Add £ Issue of equity share capital - -
As ot March 31, 2021 377 3,767

b. Other Equity

Reserves and surplus

Securities G IR i Share-biased Retuined

Partlculars Premium eneral Heserve payments earnings Total other equity
[refer note Reserve
(refer note 1)~ (refer note (refer note
l L]
11{)) vl TR .

As at April 01, 2019 6,430 118 - #4315 2,221
Loss for the year - - - (L2501} (L2513
Cther comprehensive income - - - [N
Tetal comprehensive Joss L . - {1.250) (1,250}
As at parch 31, 2020 6430 114 - (5,574} 972
Loss for the yeur - - - {735) (735)]
Share-based paymenis . -| 1 - 1
Other compreliensive loss - - . (76) (76}
Total comprehensive luss - - - {811% {R11)
As at March 31, 2021 6,430 116 1 {6,386) 161

Nature & purpose of resecves:

* Securities premium: Represents the pramium received in carlier yeats upon issue of shares and can be utilized as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 (as amended),

#* General reserve: The amuunt in general 1eserve has been recorded us per Companies (Transfer of Profits to Reserves) Reles, 1975 i carlier
years. Consequent to introduction of Compunies Act 2013 (as amended), the cequirement to datorily transfer a specified perceniage of the net

profit ta general reserve has been withdrawn, However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be wtilised only in accordance
wirth the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013,

# Share-Bosed Payments Reserve: The share optivns-based payment reserve is used to recognise the g,nuu date f2ir value of options :ssued to
employees under Employee stock option plan,

## Retained earnings: Retaimed eamings are the profitsi(loss) ihat the Company has enmedincurred till date, kss any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shorcholders, Retained camings includes m-measurement loss / {gain) on defincd benefit plans, net of 1axes
that will not be reclassified to restated consolidated statement of profit and loss. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company and
cligible for distribution to shareholders, in case swhese it {s having positive balance representing net eatnings till date,

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)
The accompanying notes are an jntegral part of these financial statements,

As per o report of vvea date

For S.R. Batliboi & Assoclates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directots (’-—
Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited
Al Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004 W M%/ L"‘
Jayant Khosla Mukesh Luthra
Munaging Director Chairmun
DIN No. 08321843 DN No.60296830

Narinder Kumar

Place: Gurugram Group Chief Financial Qfficer and Company Scerctary
Date: August 06, 2021 Membership No, : FUS 3594




. VLCC Health Care Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

VLCC Health Care Limited (‘the Company) is an unlisted public limited company domiciled in India and
was incorporated in India on October 23, 1996 under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in
India. The registered office of the company is located at M-14 Greater Kailash-I1, Commercial Complex
New Delhi.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of maintaining and running beauty, slimming, fitness
and health centres at various locations, sale of beauty products and also provide vocational training in
beauty and nutrition across India. }
These financial statements as at and for the years ended March 31 and 2021, 2020 were authorised for issue
in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on August 06, 2021

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and March
31, 2020 and the related Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement
of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for each of the years ended March 31, 2021 and March
31, 2020 and the Notes to the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial statements™)

These financial staterments are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as
“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, which have been
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meetings held on August 06, 2021 and
December 29, 2020 respectively, on which an unmodified audit opinion was issued vide audit reports dated
August 06, 2021 and December 29, 2020, respectively.

The Financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis, and the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as specifically required
by Ind AS. (Refer accounting policy).

The Financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR") and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated as per the requirement of Schedule III.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a ltablhty for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: :

o It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. )

b) Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Measurement of foreign currency non-monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

¢ Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

e Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

\|




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

respectively).

o In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration, If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration

¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to seli the asset or transfer the llablllty takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finanecial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration, wherever applicable. At each reporting
date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,




YLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Runpees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the.Company has determinéd classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer net of variable
consideration e.g., discounts, volume rebates, any payments made to a customer {unless the payment is for
a distinct good or service received from the customer). The Company recognises the revenue when it
transfers control over a product or service to a customer. Revenue is only recognised fo the exfent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

Revenne from services .
The Company recognizes revenue primarily from beauty and slimming packages (beauty and wellness
services).

Revenue from regular beauty sales is recognised as services are provided to the customers.

Revenue in respect of tuition fees received from students for courses run by the Company and also those
launched under various schemes by the Government of India is recognised over the period of the course as
the Company believes that the obligation is towards the full course rather than a particular session. Fees are
recorded net of discounts, rebate, and incentives if any.

Revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees received from the franchisees or infrastructure
provider is recognised over the period of the contract.

Revenue in respect of royalty received from the franchisees is recognised on accrual basis at the end of each
month in terms of the agreement.

Revenue from products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the Company transfers the control of goods to the
customer as per the terms of contract, generally on delivery of the products. The Company considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance abligations to which a portion
of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers
the effects of variable consideration, non-cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if
any). The Company believes that the control gets transferred to the customer on delivery of the goods to
the customers. '

Contract Balances -

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Corpany has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If & customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract [iabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Unearned and deferred revenue (‘contract liability’} is recognised when there are blllmgs in excess of
revenues.

- Interest income
» Income from interest on time deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rates using the effective interest rate (EIR).

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter pericd, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend is recogni‘sed when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

¢) Government Grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts
over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value
amounts and released to profit or Joss over the expected useful [ife in a pattern of consumption of the benefit
of the underlying asset i.e., by equal annual instalments.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The
loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

f) Taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income tax .

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the vear as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income. st




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their catrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

» Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresecable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the management.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred
up to that date. '

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the

cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to Note 3 regarding

significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further information about
the recorded Asset retirement liability,

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
- plant and equipment recognised as at April 01, 2017 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value,

Depreciation on all tangible Property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets at rates specified in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, which is as
follows: .

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Plant and Equipment . 13 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers: )

e Servers 6 years

e Desktops/ laptops ' 3 years
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- Freehold Land is not depreciated as it has unlimited useful life.
- Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease, generally the lease period is 9 years.

- All assets costing Rs. 5,000 or below are depreciated in full on pro-rata basis from the date of their
acquisition.

Depreciation on addition to Property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are acquired/ installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from Property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction, discarding, as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. -

h) - Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impainment losses, if any. The cost of
an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impatrment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite, useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individuaily or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as follows:
Particulars X Useful life (years)
Computer software 6 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each

financial year and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between '
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

i) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs. -

j) Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings and other equipment.
Other equipment majorly includes machines for providing services to customers. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contraet conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i} the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the [ease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the

estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
» Eqguipment — 9 months to 61 months
» Premises — 12 months to 159 months
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company has accordingly applied the practical expedient, as per Ind AS 116, for the rent concessions/
rent waivers received due to Covid-19 Pandemic by recognising that in other income.

k) Inventories

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if
the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of
raw materials, components and stores and spares is determined on a First in First Out (FIFO) basis. Stores
and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Cost of finished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Cost includes all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present location and condition including
octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. Work in Progress and finished goods include
appropriate proportion of overheads wherever applicable. Goods in transit are valued at cost excluding
import duties.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1} Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount based on estimates of future cash flows arising from continuing use of such
assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment loss is recognised where it is probable
that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. I no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calg,
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are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the assets or cash generating units (“CGU") recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Company of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

m) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to |
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and
are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent [iability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
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Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Company operates a funded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as_at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on
termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of
service\ Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan
assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The expected return on
plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through QCl in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Company has no unconditional right to
defer the liability. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accurnulated at the reporting date. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

Effective the year ended March 31, 2021, the amendment in Ind AS 19 on Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement became applicable. The amendments required the Company to (i) use updated assumptions
to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and (ii) recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the
impact of the asset ceiling. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

o) Employee Share-based Payments -

The Company has formulated employee Stock Option Plan as approved & maodified by Compensation
Committee / Board of Directors of the Company from time to time, The Plan provides for grant of Stock
Options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Company
that vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period. The options are to be
converted into one share at a predetermined price to be exercised in accordance with the plan.
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The exercise price of the options shall be fair market value on the date of grant per aoption. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the peried in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense,

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market perfermance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met, An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Under the approved plan, the company has issued shares to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair

market value determined on the date of issue which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees.
L

p) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

» Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL})
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

¢ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company 8 balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment [oss on the trade receivable (financial assets) and credit risk exposure.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in creditrisk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head *other expenses’ in the
P&L.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
pracess.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
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of profit and loss.
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as
Ilablllty at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

q) Earnings/ (loss) per share

4
Basic earnings/ (Joss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to
the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to
be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented

r) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques in hand, credit
card receivables and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

$) Dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A correspondmg amount is
recognised directly in equity.
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t) Investments

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if
the Company has:

o Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee, and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary,
in the value of such investments. Current investments are catried individually, at the lower of cost and fair
value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

u) Treasury shares

The Company has created a VLCC Employee Welfare Trust for providing share-based payment to its
employees. The Company uses trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee
remuneration schemes. The Company has issued shares to the trust at fair market value determined on the
date of issue which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees. The Company treats trust as its
extension and shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if
reissued, is recognised in equity. Share options exercised during the reporting period are satisfied with
treasury shares. .

¥) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The Chief Operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments and makes strategic decisions. Refer note 28 for segment
information presented.

w) Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the
financial statements. Significant impact on the financial statements arising from disposal of substantial
assets of subsidiary, impairment of goodwill and provision for doubiful debts (other than major lines of
business that meet the definition of a discontinued operations) are considered and reported as exceptional
items.

X) Contribute(i Equity
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Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

3.1 Significant judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company bases its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Revenue recognifion

» The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and
services to a customer over a period of time. The Company assesses the products/services promised in a
contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefit independently from such deliverables.

+ Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
discounts, price concessions, etc. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction
price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of
variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the
end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the
performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more
distinet performance obligations. 0
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* The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

« The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes
benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable
right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant
risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a black-scholes
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 34.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
~ making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

] .

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 32,
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Provision for decommissioning

In measuring the provision for site restoration obligation, the Company uses the technical estimates to
determine the expected cost of dismantling and removing the improvement or infrastructure for properties
under lease. Discount rates are determined based on the government bond rate of a similar period as the
liability, '

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the [ease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several
lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
[ease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate. Further details on leases are disclosed in note 29,

.Estimation of incremental borrowing rate

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discountted normally using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate, term and currency of the
contract. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) as the discount rate. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available, Further details on leases are disclosed in note 29.
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Propetty, plant & equipment and Capital wark in progress

Freehold Plant and Furniture . Office Leasehold Computer Capital work
. Vehicles . . . Total :
Land equipment  and fixtures . equipment improvements  equipment in progress #

Gross Block

(At cost)

As at April 01,2019 261 4,359 407 212 702 5,194 117 11,251 -
Add: Additions 18 351 28 - 54 140 3 594 27
Less: Disposals* - -175 -49 - 93 -437 -10 =764 -
As at March 31, 2020 279 4,535 387 212 663 4,897 109 11,082 27
Add: Additions - 245 23 17 4] 142 5 471 -
Less: Disposals* - -290 -32 -38 -85 -532 -11 -989 -
As at March 31, 2021 279 4,489 377 191 619 4,507 103 10,5658 27
Accumulated Depreciation '

As at April 01,2019 - 1,120 182 67 335 2,355 76 4,135 -
Add: Charge - 427 57 24 122 722 19 1,372 -
Less: Disposals* . - -119 -41 - -83 -406 -10 -660 -
_As at March 31, 2020 - 1,428 198 91 374 2,671 85 4,847 -
Add: Charge - 430 44 23 94 558 9 1,208 -
Less: Disposals* - -267 -27 -24 -81 =528 ~10 =939 -
As at March 31,2021 - 1,642 214 90 387 __2,701 83 5,116 -
Net carrying value

As at March 31, 2020 279 3,107 189 121 289 2,226 24 6,236 27
As at March 31, 2021 279 _ 2,848 163_ 11 231 1,806 21 5,448 27

# Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 majorly comprises of leasehold improvements.

* Disposals includes asset write off of Gross book value for March 31, 2021 amouting to INR 717 lakhs (net book value of INR 137 lakhs); Gross bock value for March 31, 202¢ amounting fo

INR 239 lakhs (net book value of INR 99 lakhs)

Movable property, plant and equipment both present and future are charged against secured loan (refer note 13).
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6 Other Intangible assels

Computer

software Total
Gross Block
(At cost)
As at April 01,2019 625 625
Add: Additions 11 n
Less: Dispesals - -
As at March 31, 2020 636 636
Add: Additions 8 8
Less: Disposals - -
As at Mareh 31, 2021 644 6d4
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2019 278 279
Add: Charge 85 85
Less: Disposals - : -
As at March 31, 2020 363 364
Add: Charge 81 &1
Less: Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2021 444 445
As at March 31, 2020 273 273
As at March 31, 2021 200 200
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- 7  Financial assets
- 7(a) Investments
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- Unguoted equity investments fully pafd-up
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (at cost)
- 43,75.000 (March 31, 2020: 43,75,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up of
VLCC Personal Care Limited 1,900 1,900
44,50,457 (March 31, 2020: 37,79,216) Ordinary shares of USD 1 each fully paid up of
_ VLCC International Inc., British Virgin [slands 9,283 9,283
_ Total 11,183 11,183
Investment in government securities (Unquoted, at amortised cost) * { ]
) 6 year National Savings Certificate
(pledged with sales tax authorities)
- Ageregate value of unquoted equity investments 11,183 11,183
- Total Tnvestments 11,183 11,183

* Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2021 is Rs 23,000 (March 31, 2020: 23,000).

7(b) Loans March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) (at amortised cost)
_ Non Current
Security deposits
- Considered good 790 661
- Considered doubtful 156 156
046 817
Less: Credit impaired (156) - {156)
. - 790 661
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- Current
i} Security deposits 330 444
o Advance to employees 113 91
- 443 534
- 7(c) Trade reccivables March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
unsecured
— - Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 30) 39 20
- Receivables from others, considered good 182 197
_ - Credit impaired 154 86
- 375 303
_ Less: Impaitment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
- Credit impaired (154) {86)
- Teotal Trade receivables 221 218

- year ended as of that date were as follows:

The allowance for doubtful accounts as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 and changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balanec 86 50
_ Add: Provision / {reversal) of trade receivables-credit impaired 68 36
Closing balance 154 86

private companies respectively in which any director is a partncr‘ a director or a member.

- Trade recei\rables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.
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{All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise sfaied)

7(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
= On current account
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cashi on hand *
Cheques on hand
Credit card receivables

* includes foreign currencies equivalent 1o INR Lakhs

T(e) Other financial assets
(unsecured, considered gaod unless stated otherwise ) (at amortised cost)

Non Current
Deposits with eriginal maturity of more than twelve months
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Advance to VLCC Employee Welfare Trust (refer note 34)

Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months bul less than twelve
months
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months
Insurance claims
Dividend income receivable *
Commission on corporate guaranice receivable
Interest accrued on bank deposits**
Other receivable***

March 31,2021 ___March 31, 2020
1,016 215
. 9

649 100
251 35
453 10
7,369 369
5 5

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

41 106

- |

33 33

4 141

- 32

74 14

- 28

370 -
176 .

2 0

- 70

23 144

* Dividend for INR 370 lakhs is receivable from VLCC Personal Care Limited (wholly owned subidiary of the Company). The same has been

approved in the board meeting of VLCC Personal Care Limited dated March 31, 2021,
** Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2020 is Rs 27,954,

*®* Other receivable includes accrued purchase volume discount as at March 31, 2021: Nil (March 31, 2020: INK 69.8 lakhs)
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Breakup of Financial Asset at amoréised cost

Non-current

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (at cost) (refer note 7(a))

Investment in govetnment securities (refer nole 7(a))

Security deposits (refer note 7({b)) -
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months (refer note 7(e})}

Interest accrued on bank deposits (refer nole 7(e))

Advance to VLCC employee welfare trust (refer note 7(e))

Total non-current financial asset carried at amortised cost

Current

Trade receivables {refer note 7(c))

Securily deposits (refer note 7(b))

Advance to employees (refer note 7(b)}

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 7(d))

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve
months (refer note 7(e))

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months {refer note 7(e))
Insurance claims (refer note 7(e))

Dividend income receivable (refer note 7(e))

Commission on corporate guaraniee receivable (refer note 7(e))

Interest accrued on bank deposits (tefer note 7{e))

Other receivable (refer note 7{e))

Total current financial asset carried at amoriised cost

Total financial assct carried at amortised cost

8 Inventorics

(At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Consumables #
Stock in trade (acquired for trading)

Total

# including stock in transil
Inventary includes products mainly for beauty and slimming services (wellness and
beauty services)

March 31, 2021 Mareh 31,2020
11,183 11,183
0 1]
790 660
41 106
- 1
33 33
12,047 11,984
221 218
330 444
113 91
2,369 369
‘ - 32
74 14
- 28
370 -
176 -
2 0
- 70
3,656 1,266
15,703 13,250
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,525 1,684
560 31
2,085 2,420
38 20

The Company has a policy to perform physical verification of inveniory at regular intervals including year end. On account of lockdown
announced in various jurisdictions where the Company operates and the inability to travel coupled with social distancing noms imposed post
lockdown and the volume of inventory involved, the physical verification of inventory was not performed as at March 31, 2020, The same has
been performed subsequently and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
% Other asscts
(unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Non- Current
Capital advances - 4
Prepaid expenses [ . 4
Tax paid under protest
(i) Value added tax / service tax 22 22
(i) Luxury tax 18 18
46 58
Current .
Advance piven to suppliers 228
Balances with government authorities* -
Prepaid expenses 63
291

* Absolute amounts before rounding ofT as at March 31, 2021 is Rs 20,602 (March 31, 2020: Nil).

(This page has been intentionally lefi blank)
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(AN avmounts iin INR Lokls snless othensise stated)

10 Share capital

Authorised share capital

5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2019; 50,000,000) equity shares of

INR 10 each

Tssued, subscribed and fully pakd-up shares

3,76,68,283 (March 31, 2020: 3,76.68.283) equity shares of

INR. 10 cach

Total issued, subscribesd and fully paid-up share eapital

a) Reconcilintion of the shares outstanding at she beginning and at the ¢end of the reporting year

Equity sharcs of INR. 10 each issued, subscriled and

fully paid

As at April §1, 2019
Issued during the yoar
As at March 31, 2020
Isswed during the year
As at March 31, 2021

by Termsf eights aftached to equity shares:

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

5000 5,000

3,767 3,767

3,767 3,767
No. of shares Amount
{In Lakhs) .

377 3,767

kKirl 3,767

n 3,167

The Compamy has only ona class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of the equity shares is entitled to ane vole per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indfan Rupees. The Dividend proposed. if any. by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of sharcholders in the

chsuing Awal general meeting,

During the year ne interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

1o the event of liquidaison of the O v, ths holders of equity shares will be entitted to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribation of all proferemial
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the nmnher of squity shares held by the shareholders. :
¢) Details of sharcholders holding maore thas 5% shares in the company
. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Equity Shares of INR 10 each Fully o T holding i the|  No. of shares | % hoMing in the
paid &
(in Lakls) eqerity shares (i Laldhs) equity shares
Mr. Mukesh Luthra 1.8 24.37% 91.3 24.37%
Mrs. Vandana Luthra 167.1 44.35% 167.1 44,35%
Leon Iniemational Limited 514 13.63%) Sl 13.65%|
Mfs OIH Mauritivs Limited (formearly| o
known as Mfs Indivision India Partners) 569 1311% 5!_5.9 1511%
) Shates reserved for issue under options :
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee siock option (ESOP) plan of the Contpany, please refer nole 34,
11 Other equity
{a) Securities premiom
Amaunt
As at April 01,2019 6,430
Change during the year -
As at March 31, 2020 6,430
Change during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 6430
{b) General reserves
As at Aprl 01,2019 Amount
Change during, the year 116
As at March 31, 2000 .
Change during the year 116
As of March 31, 2021 -
116

() Share bosed poyment reserve

As at Apxil 01, 2019
Change during the year
As at March 31,2020
Change daring the year
Ag at March 31,2021

{d) Refnined carnings

As at April 01, 2019
Loss lor the year

Other comprehensive income
As al March 31,2020

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss
As ol March 31, 2021

Amount

{4,323)
(12313

(5.5%4)
(735)
(76)
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12 Contract liabilities

MNon-current
Dreferred revenue
Deferred Jease -security deposil

Current

Advance from franchisees
Deferred revenue

Deferred lease -security deposit

Contract Liabilities consists of:

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
834 1,036
1 13
895 1054
467 430
5,474 4,111
7 7
5,948 4,568
6.343 5622

(i) Revenue relating to wnexecuted packages of beauty, slimming and vocational training services and for which amount has been received in advance from

custorners and are non refundable;

{ii} Revenue relating (o franchisee sign vp fee for which amount has been received in advance from franchisor and are non refindable and are recognized over

the period of contract with the franchises.

13 Financial Liabilitles
13(a) Borrowings Macch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non curvent
Term loans from banks {secured) (refer note (1} below) 2,090 2,062
Term Loans - others {unsecured) (refer note I1{i) below) 1,200 700
Vehicle loans from banks/others (secuned) 46 54
« Cumrent maturities of long term borrowings disclosed vnder "other current (1.095) {560)
financial liabilities" [refer nate 13(c)] q
) 2241 2,256
Current
Term Loans - olbets {unsecured) (refer note L) below) 500 700
Cash credit {secured) (refer note {111) below) 320 546
' Cash credit {unsecured) (refer note (111} below) S00 s00
1,320 1,746
N
Apgregate secuved loans (A)
Non current 2136 2,116
Current {including current maturitics of long term borrowings) 320 546
2,456 2,663
Agoregate unsecared lozns (B)
Non cwrrent 1,200 F00
Cutreni 1,000 [,200
2,200 1,900
Aggregate borrowings (A+B) 4,656 4,563
: March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1) Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of the
secured long-term borrowings:
Term loan from banks:
ICIC1 Bank [refer note (1)) 424 575
Yes Bank [vefer note (if)] 287 419
- Yes Pank [refer note (iii)] 06 1,068
Yes Bank [refer note (iv)} 473 -
HOFC Bank [refer note (v)] 30 54
ICICI Bank Limited [refer note (vi)] 16 -
1,136 2,116

Security detalls:
(i) The loan is obtalned from 1CICI Bank and is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present and future.

Originaily the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these 16 monthly instalments of INR 26.5 Lakhs each along with interest at Base rate plus
- 3.1% are pending as on March 3, 2021,

(i} 'The loan is obtained from Yes Bank and is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present and futuse. Criginally
the [oan is repayable in 54 monihly instalments out of these balance 11 monthly instalments of [NR 26.1 Lakhs along with interest at MCLR plus 2.05% are
pending as on March 31, 2021,

(iii) The loan is abtained from Yes Bank and is secured by a first pari passa charge on all curvent assets and movable fixed assets both present and future, Originally
the Joan is repayable in 60 monthly instalmenis oul of these balance 24 monthly instalments of INR 37.7 Lakhs along with interest at MCLR plus 1.95% are
pending as on March 31, 2021,

{iv) The Loan under Emergency Credit Line Guaranteed Scheme of National Credit Guaraniee Trustes Company Limited, is taken from Yes Bank on a interest rate
al MCLR plus 1% subject to maximum of 3.25% p.a. The loan is secured by second charge on all current assets and movable property, plant and equipment and
charge on assets financed through this Loan. Originally the loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments of INR 13.1 Lakhs, p;cscntly under 12 month
moralorium period. Repayment of loan shall be commenced from February, 2022,
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tv) The vehicle loan is taken from HDFC Bank by the Company on a interest raie of §%-8.3% p.a . The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective vehicles.,
repayable in 14 monthly insialments of INR 2,15 lakhs along with interest.

(vi) The Vehicle loan is taken from ICICL Bank by the Company and carries interest rate of 8.51% p.a .The loans are secured by hypothecation of respective
vehicles, and repayable in 68 monthly instalments of INR 0.24 lakhs along with interest.

tvii) The Reserve Bank of India, in March this year, offered a relief measure to the borrowers in the form of EMI moralerium on all term loans for three months il
May 31, 2020. This was further extended by another three months till August 31, 2020. In toial, Reserve Bank of Indiz has offered a moratorium of six-months
between March 01, 2020 and August 31, 2020, The Company has opted to avail this relief and defer its principal and interest payments in relation 1o ils
outstanding term loans as on March 31, 2020.

tviii) Term loan from 1CIC1 Bank and Yes Bank contains certain financial debt covenants. All the covenants have been complied with during (he year. The company
has also satisfied all ather debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank Joan, '

(1T} Details of Term Luans - others (unsecured):-
(i) The unsecurad loan amounting 1o INR 1200 Lakhs (March 31, 2020; INR 700 Lakhs) has been iaken from Palm Land Hospitality Privale Limited and is
payeble by June 30, 2024 along with interest a1 12% p.a.

(i} The unsecured loan amounting to INR 560 Lakhs (March 31, 2020; INR 700 Lakhs) has been taken from Mr. Mukesh Luthra, Chairman of the Company and is
inlerest free Loan, This is repayable on demand.

(1T} Details of terms of repayment provided in respect of the seeured current borrowings:

Cash Credit March 31, 2021 _March 31, 2020

secared

Yes Bank Limited [refer note (a)] 307 346

Axis Bank Limited [refer note (b)] 13 200
320 546

unseeured

Yes Bank Limited [refer note {c}] 500 508
500 500

Total 820 1.046_

(2) The Toan is secured by first pari passw churge on all current asssts and movable property, plant and equipment (excluding vehicle) both present and future and
payeble on demand along with interest at base rate plus 0.90%.

(1) The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on ail current assets and movable praperty, plant and equipment both present and future and payable on demand
along with interest at base rate plus 11094,

{c) The loan is payable on demand along with interest at Base rate plus 0.50%.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and inferest during the year,

13(1) Teade payables March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

- Total outslanding dues of micro and-small enterprises (refer note 27 for 26 164
details of dues to micro and small enterprises)
26 164
- Total outstanding duzs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3802 6.572
Payable to related parlies (refer nole 30) 1466 1,116
7267 7,688
Tatal 7,293 7852
Trade payabies are non-interzst bearing and are normally setiled on 60-day terms.
13{c) Other financial liabilitics
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Nop- current
Security deposits received 103 - 100
103 R | l&
Curtent
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,095 ° 560
(refer note 13{a))
[nterest accrued but not due on borrowings 145 79
Security deposits received ’ 5 11
Payable for capital purchases ) 447 416

Total 1,692 1,066
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14 Provisions

Non- current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32)

Other provisions
Provision for decommissioning liabilities

Current

Provision for emphoyee benefits
Provision lor gratvity (refer note 32)
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for decommissioning liabilitics

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
317 606
517 606
26 30

26 30

_ 543 636
248 124
227 g
474 132
22 15

22 15

496 147

Provision for decomm issioning liabilitics

Under few operating lease agreements entered by the Company, it has to incur restoration cost for restoring lease premises te the original condition af the time

of expiry of lease period. Approximately 50% of the oulflow is expected to be in 1-3 years. Retnaining outflow iz expected to be in 4-9 years.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
At the beginning of the year 43 42
Avising during the year 3 i
At the ead of the year 45 45
15 Qriher liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Statutory dues 447 308
447 308
16 Income tax
) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are:
Profit or loss
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tax axpense:
Current lax - -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Deferred tax:
Relating io origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss . -
Other comprebensive income
Deferred tax related to ktems recoghised in OCI during the pear:
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net loss/(gain) cn remeasurements-of defined benefit plans - -
Income tnx charged to OCI -
b} Current tax assetf (liabilitics) (net) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax assels 2,856 3,390
Current tax (liabilities) /(Provision) (2,17 {2,998)
Current tax assct! (liabilities) (net) 439 391
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s demestic tax rate for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total loss before tax from continuing operations (735) {1.251)
At India’s statutery income tax rate of 27.82% (March 31, 2020. 27.82%) (204} (343)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 24 -
Tax charge due to decrease in tax rate - 171
Deferred tax not recognised dus to able certainity, net of utilisation 180 177

At the effective income tax rate

Income tax expensc reported in ihe séatement of profit and loss and
other comprehensive income
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Balance Shcet:

Delerred (ax assets relates to the following
Property, plant and equipment / infangible assets
Leases

Employee benefits

Provision far doubtlul trade receivables
Provigion for doubifui deposits

Carry forward josses/unabscrbed depreciation
QOther

Total deferred tax asscts (net)

Statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax asscts relates to the follewing (refer note (i))
Depreciation/amortisation on property, plant and equipmentf intangible
assets

Leascs

Empleyee benefits

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

Provision for doubtful deposits

Carry forward lossesfunabsorbed deprecintion

Other

Total deferred tax assets (net)

Movement in deferved tax assets
" Atthe beginning of the year
Tax credit recognized {n profit and loss
Tax credil recognised in OCI
At the end of the year

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,269 £,291
525 32
277 259
43 24
43 43
549 702
13 67
2,719 E’f‘lg
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
(22) {138)
192 258
18 132
19 (58)
. (11}
(153) (7
(34) {13)
Mareh 31,2021 March 31, 2020
2,19 2719
2,719 2,719

{i) As the Company has brought forward unused tax losses, deferred tax asset has been recognised to the extent of probable future taxable profits over next fow
years and accordingly no incremental deferred tax credit has been recopnised on the timing differences and 1ax losses arising during the current year. Deferred

tax asset nol recopnised due to reasonable cerainity amounting ko INR 25 Lakhs {March 31, 2020: 298 Lakhs)

Maturity aualys_is of carry forward Eosses and naabsorbed depreciation are as follows:

Year ending March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Carry forward losses

March 31, 2025 99 493
[nabsorbed depreciation for ind eftnite period 4516 4,516

(This page has heen ntentionolly lefi hlunk)
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17 Revenue from operations

Sale of services [refer note (i) below]
Sale of products [traded goods]
Revenue from operations

Notes:

(i) Sale of services comprises:
Wellness and beauty services
Tuition fees
Income from franchisees
Royalty income
Total sale of services

(i) Sale of products [traded goods]
Revenue from operations

(ifi) Timing of revenue recognition
Goods/services transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

{(iv) Revenue based on geographical location
India
QOutside India

Revenue from operations

(v) Contract balances
Trade receivables
Contract liabilities

Note:

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of O to 30 days.

Contract liabilities includes advance from customers received for supply of services.

(vi) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price*
Revenue from operations
* Contracted prices are net of discounts

(vii) Particulars pertaining to deferred revenue
_ (Before deferred income of corporate guarantee)

Balance at the beginning

Revenue recognised during the year from opening defetred revenue

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
18,717 33,156

737 1,287

19,454 34,443

14,621 25,880

3,558 6,429

237 209

301 638

18,717 33,156

737 1,287

19,454 34,443

2,747 5,386

16,707 28,557

19,454 34,443

19,454 34,439

- 4

19,454 34,443

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
221 218

6,843 5,622

March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
19,454 34,443

19,454 34,443

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
5,496 6,095

4,034 5,303

2
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(viii} Performance obligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
{unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
Revenue expected 4o be recognised upon delivery of services

Within one year 5,948 4,568
More than one year 895 1,054
6,843 5,622

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods or services to the customers.

18 Other income March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Liabilities no longer required written back 433 -
Dividend income from subsidiary company 400 -
Insurance claims received .26 -
Miscellaneous income ge 52
Profit on Property, plant and equipment sold 7 -
Net gain on foreign exchangs transactions -7 -
Lease concessions (refer note 29) * 1,924 -
(iain on derecognition of lease liability 112 -

2,995 52

* During the year ended March 31, 2021, consequential to COVID-19 pandemic, the company hes negotiated several lease
concessions with the landlords. Further, in view of recent amendments by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2020, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient of not assessing the lease concessions as a
lease modification, as per MCA notification dated July 24, 2020 on {nd AS 116 for lease concessions received on account of
COVID-19 pandemic.

19 Finance income March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest from banks on deposits '
[Tax deducted at source [INR 1 Lakh 10 11
(March 31, 2020: INR 1 Lakh)] '
Intetest on security deposits at amortised cost (refer note {i)) 82 93
Interest an loan to employees - 1
Total 92 104
Note (i)

Interest on security deposits at fair value has been measured using effective interest rate method and the difference between
fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as deferred lease expense and it has been added to
ROU and amortised as depreciation as per Ind AS I16.
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20

21

22

23

24

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of material consumed

(Increase) / decrease in inventories-traded goeds

Inventories at the end of the year
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Decrease/ {increase) in inventories

Purchase of traded goods

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 32)
Share based payment expense (refer note 34) )
Gratuity expenses (refer note 32)

Staff welifare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on term loan

[nterest on cash credit

Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 29)

Interest on other debt and borrowings

Interest on late deposit of tax

Total interest expense

Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate on
provisions

Consumer financing
Total

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 5)
Amottization of intangible assets (refer note 6)
Amortization of right-of-use assets {refer note 29)

Total

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,684 1,435

3,108 4,771

4,792 6,206

1,525 1,634

3,267 4,522

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
560 737

737 583
176 (158

254 882

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
6,429 9,834

413 717

1 -

134 149

101 293

7,078 10,993

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
241 305

98 105

1,771 2,047

&6 84

i1} 15

2,284 2,556

3 3

781 1i12

3,068 3,671

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,208 1,372

81 as

3,912 4,343

5,201 5,801




VLCC Health Care Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(AN amonnts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

25

Other cxpenses March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rent [refer note 29) ' 257 298
(enerator rent and maintenance charges 101 188
Electricity and water charges 647 1,006
Repairs and maintenance

- Building 177 304

- Equipment 26 66

- Others 359 704
Insurance g9 o8
Rates and taxes . 122 234
Communication expenses ' 133 209
Travelling and conveyance 325 957
Printing and staticnery 20 52
Legal and professional expenses 168 395
Doctor's consultancy charges 261 827
Payments to auditors [refer note (i) below] 37 31
Vehicle running and maintenance 28 58
House keeping charges 465 1,051
Membership and subscription 22 34
Offtce expenses 80 150
Directors sitting fees 17 12
Advertisement expenses : 486 2,988
Student training expenses - 7
Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/ written off - 19
Net loss an foreign exchange transactions : - 28
Impairment allowance on trade recejvables (Net of bad debts written 150 55
off INR 82 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: 39 Lakhs)
Advances written off 33 26
Infrastructure usage expenses 201 264
Miscellaneous expenses 30 76
Total 4,232 10,135

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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25

25(a)

26

Other expenses (Cont'd)

Note (i)

Payment to Auditors March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Payments to the auditors comprises (net of goeds and services tax input
credit, where applicable):
To statutory auditors: N
- Audit fee 33 24
- Other services - 5
Reimbursement of expenses 4 2
Total 37 31
Components of Other Comprehensive Income
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans =76 1
=76 1
Calcnlation of loss per share (EPS) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and
diluted EPS computation:
Nominal value per equity share (in INR) 10 10
Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for computing Basic (735) (1,251)
and Dilutive EPS (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 377 377
for computing Basic EPS (B} '
Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of 2 -
equity shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year Ky 377
for computing Diluted EPS {C)
Basic loss per share (A/B) (1.95) (3.32)
Diluted loss per share (A/C) {1.95) (3.32)

There have been no fransactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporiing date and the date of

authorisation of these financial statements.

Weighted average number of shares is the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the period adjusted by
the number of equity shares/oprtions issued during year, multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is
the number of days for which the specific shares/options granted are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days

during the vear.

(This page has been intentionally lefi blank)
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27 Payables to micro and small enterprises 2

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has Issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the
Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the entrepreneurs memorandum number as allocated
after filing of the memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at the year-end has been
made in the financia) statements based on information available with the Company as under:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year
-Principal 2l 149
-interest 5 15
-the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enferprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;
-the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the I 20
fnterest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006;
-The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 5 (]
-the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expendilure under section 23 of the Micto, 3 15
Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

28 Contingent liabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for)

(i) Contingent liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Guarantees/Letters of credit [refer note (a) below] 3,981 6,926
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:-
- Value added tax [refer note (b) below] 122 i22
- Service tax [refer note {c) below] 920 23
- Luxury tax [refer note (d) below] 40 32
- Customs duty [refer note (2) below] - o1
- [ncome tax [refer note (f) below] 75 80
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts [refer note (g) below] 32 -

4,341 7,274

(a) The Company has given guarantee/letier of credits to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries:-

Guarantees/ Letters of credit Given In respect to Credit

to Facilities granted to Maturity Date March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
HDFC Bank VLCC International Inc.  November 30, 2020 - 1,364
Nationai Bank of Fujairah, Dubai VLCC International LLC June 23, 2024 3,981 5,562

3,981 6,926
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(b) The Company has 12 cases (March 3], 2020: 12 cases ) with respect to demand of VAT for different states for which appeals are pending
with Commissioner (Appeals) of respective state.

(¢) The Company has 12 {(March 31, 2020: 10 cases) cases for service tax out of which, 6 cases (March 31, 2020: 6 cases) are pending with
CESTAT and 6 cases (March 31, 202(: 4 cases ) with Appellate authorities .

(d) The Company has 2 cases (March 31, 2020: | case) of luxury tax out of which 1 case (March 31, 2020: | case) is pending with Appellate
tribunal (commercial tax) and one with Appellate authorities.

(e) Demand for customs duty aggregating to INR Nil (March 31, 2020: 91 Lakhs) for the year 2012-16 is disputed by the Company and the
Company had preferred an appeal with CESTAT. On similar matter for another consignment, CESTAT vide its order dated June 30, 2017 has
already set aside the demand and gave order in favour of the Company. The Commissioner of Customs (Appeals) vide order dated July 4,
2020 has set aside the demand and gave order in favour of the Company for the year 2012-16 also.

{f) Income Tax demands;

- Demand for assessment year 2011-12 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appea! before Commissioner of Income
Tax {Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in October, 2020 and consequently the demand has been reduced to
INR 48.1 Lakhs from INR 116 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending for hearing with Income Tax Appellant Tribunal (ITAT). The Company has
deposited INR. 10 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 10 Lakhs) under protest.

- Demand for assessment year 2012-13 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2016-17 and consequently the demand has been
reduced to INR 6.9 Lakhs fram INR 73 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with [TAT which is pending for hearing.

- Demand for assessment year 2013-14 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2017-18 and consequently the demand has
been reduced to INR 4.4 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with [TAT which is pending for hearing,

- Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 22 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: INR 22 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2014-15 is disputed by the
Company and the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour
of the Company in the financial year 2018-19 and consequently the demand has been reduced to [NR 5.7 Lakhs, Now the Appeal is pending
with ITAT which is pending for hearing. "

- Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 9.8 Lakhs (March 31, 2020: 9.3 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2015-16 is disputed by the
Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing before ITAT.

(g) Legal cases not provided for INR 32 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Nil, March 31, 2019: Nil) as the Company has been legally advised that the
outcome is likely to be in favour of the Company.

(h) The Company also evaluated the consequent impact of compliance with applicable laws including minimum wages act on some of its Covid
initiatives and has recorded provisions on best estimates.

(i1} Capital commitments March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Estimated amount of contracis remaining o be executed on capital account and not
provided for:
- Property, plant and equipment 18 ' 13

The Company has commiteents for purchase/sale orders which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for purchase/sale
of goods and services, employee benefits. The Company does not have any long term commitment or material non-cancellable contractual
commitments/contracts which might have a material impact on the financial statements.
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Lease related disclosures

The Company has leases for beauty & wellness cenires, training institutes, office building, warchouses and related facilities and equipments. With the exception
of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. Variable
lease payments whicl do nol depend on an index or a rate are excluded from Lhe initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company
classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manuer (o iis property, plant and equipment.

Each lease generally imposes a sesiriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company 10 sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use assel can
only be used by the Company. Some leases contahl an option to extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the
underlying ieased assets as security, For leases over office buildings and other premises the Company must keep those propertics in a good state ol repair and
return the propertics in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required (o pay malntenance fees in accordance with the lease

contracts,

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease Hability
The expense relating to payments not included in the imeasurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Short-term leases 162 288
Variable lease paymentls 9 10

Total cash outflow for leases {net of lease concessions) for the year ended March 31, 2021 was INR 2,947 Lakhs {(Marchn 31, 2020: INR 4,958 Lakhs).

Maturity of lease liabilitics
The lease liabilities are secured by the relaled underlying assets, Fulure minimum lease payments were as follows:

Lease payments Minimum lease payments due
Within 1 year [-5 years More than 5 Total
Yenrs
March 31, 2021 4,499 12,937 480 18.916
March 31,2020 4.9%0 15,861 2,567 23,418

Rightl-of-Use Asscis and Leasc liabilitics
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars

Year ended March

Year ended Mareh

31,2021 31,2020
Balaoce at the beginning (after adjusting prepaid rent and lease equalization reserve) 16,257 18,938
Additions (after adjusting prepaid rent) 1,435 1,662
Deletions ’ {L,179) -
Depreciation {3.912) (4.343)
Balanee at the end 12,605 16,257

The following is the movement in lease ligbilities during the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31, 2020

202t
Balance at the beginning 17451 18,770
Additions 1,427 1,591
Derecognition on account of preclosure (1,287
Finance cost acerued during the period 1,771 2,047
Payment of lease liabililies (2,947) {4,938)
Adjustment for covid related rent concessionsfwaivers {1.924) -
Balance at the end 14,491 17.451
The following is the break up of current and non-cument of lease liabilities:
Current 3211 4,858
Non current 11,280 12,592

As described in Note 2.2, the MCA issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases 1o provide relief to lessees from applying Ind
AS 116 guidance on lease modification accounting lor rent coneessions arising as a ditect consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Many lessors have provided reat concessions to lessces as a resull of the Covid-19 pandemic, Renl concessions can include rent holidays or rent reductions for a
period of time, possibly followed by increased rent paymenis in future periods. Applying ibe requiremenis in Ind AS 116 for changes to lease payments,
particularty assessing whether the rent concessions are lease modifications and applying the reguired accounting, could be practically difficull in the current
environment, The objective of the amendment is to provide lessees that have been granted Covid-19 related rent concessions wilh practical relief, while still
providing useful information about leases to users of the financial statements. .

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a Covid- 19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee thal makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would account for the change under Ind
AS 116, if the change were not a lease modification, The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequepeifthe Covid-19
pandemic., ol &'x'" T
The Company has accordingly not applied modification accounting, as per Ind AS 116, for the rent concessions / renl waivers : e 16 Covid-19
Pandemic. As a resull, the Company has recopnised INR 1924 Yakh {March 31, 2020: Nil) in the statement of Profit & Loss account rey :
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30 Related party diselosures

13 Detalls of related parties:
Description of relationship
Names of related parties

(A) Subsidiary companies
VLCC Personal Care Lid

VLCC Online services Private Limited
VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pyt Ltd
Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Pvt Ltd

VLCC International Inc

VLCC International LLC *

VLCC Middle Bast LLC *

VLCC International Kuwait Heaith Care Inistitute Limited Liability Company *
VLCC Internattonal Qatar Co W.L.L. *

VLCC Internafional Limited Liability Company - Oman**
VLCC Europe Limited

VLCGC Healthcare Egypt LLC

Wyann International SDN BHD

VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Limited

VLCC Overseas Limited

VLCC Health Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd

VLCC Personal Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd
VL.CC Healthcare Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Education Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd

Global Vaniage Innovative Group Pte Lid (Gvig)
Celblos Dermal Research Centre Pte Lid

Excel Beauty Solution SDN BHD

Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Lid

VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd***

VLCC Wellness (Thailand) Co.Lid

(B) Others - Controlled trust
VLCC Employee Welfare Trust #

*

Qut of this, 49% is beld directly by VLCC International Inc. and for the balance 1% shareholding, the Company has entered into an agreement
with the other shareholders whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with VLCC International Ine. and accordingly, VLCC
International Inc. has 100% econemic interest in these companies.

*

*

Out of this, 70% is held directly by VLCC Intemational Inc. and for the balance 30% sharehalding, the Company has entered into an agreement
with the other sharcholder whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with VLCC International Ine. and accordingly, VLCC
International Inc. has 100% economic interest in this company.

4% VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd holds 49,90% of the voting tights in YLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd while ather sharcholder holds all the Class A
preference shares in VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Lid. VLCC Singapore Pte Lid also controls the affairs and the board of directors of YLCC
Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd. The chairman is appointed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd and all significant rights in respect of dividend is enjoyed by
VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd. Accordingly, VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd is considered ta be the holding company of VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd.

# The Company has no rights on the variable returns from its involvement with investee and has no ability to affect those retumn through its power
over the investee. In the light of which , Company has not consolidated the Employee Welfare trust.
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(C) Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined under Ind AS

(D} Relative of Key Management Personnel

Mukesh Luthra, Chairman

Jayant Khosla, Managing Director (wef Jan 10, 2019)

Narinder Knmar, Group Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Sanjay Mehta, Independent Director

Sanjay Kapoor, Independent Director

Rajiv Krishan Luthra, Independent Director

Shabana Azmi, Independent Director till Sep 28, 2019

Sameer Sushial Sain, Investor's Nominee Director till Sep 03, 2020
Roshni Bakshi, Investor's nominee Director (w.e.f. Sep 03, 2020)
Sandeep Ahuja, Executive Director till December 31, 2019

Vandana Luthra, Wife of Mukesh Luthra

I1) Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2021 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2021:

For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31,2020
A. Remuneration to key managerial personncl
Sandeep Ahuja - 72
Jayant Khosla 155 186
Narinder Kumar 38 80
B. Dircetor sitting fees
Mr. Sanjay Mehta, Independent Director ] 6
Mr. Sanjay Kapoor, Independent Director 6 G
Mr. Rajiv Krishan Luthra, Independent Director 5 -
C. Revenue
Sale of goods
- Bellawave Cosmetics Pie Ltd - 3
- VLCC International Qatar Co W.L.L. - 1
- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited* - 0
* Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2021 is Nil {March 31,2020: INR 5,000).
D. Other Income
Subsidiary companies

Dividend Income
- VLCC Personal Care Limited 400 -
Commission charged on corporate guarantee
- VLCC International LLC 78 37
Rent Income (Adjusted against Rent Expenses)
- VLCC Persenal Care Limited 21 19
E. Expenses
Purchase of Consumables
= VLCC Personal Care Limited 283 757
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited 23 29
- Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Lid 115 177
Rent
- VLCC Wellness Research Cenire Pvi Ltd 20 45
Professional Fees
- Vandana Luthra 6 193

F. Investment

Subsidiary companies
Investment in Equity Shares ~
- VLCC International Inc.

726
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E. Sale of Fixed Asscts
Subsidiary companies
- VLOC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Lid

G. Balance outstanding at the end of the vear
Trade receivables

- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited
- VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pyt Ltd

Other Financial Assets - Current

Investment in Equity Shares

= VLCC Personal Care Limited

-VLCC International Inc,, British Virgin 1slands

Other financial Assets
- VLCC Employee Welfare Trust
- Dividend Receivable from VLCC Personal Care Limited

Trade payables

- VLCC Personal Care Limited

= VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pvt Lid
= Bellawave Cosmetics PTE Lid

- VLCC Online Services Private Limited

- Vandzna Luthra
Guarantee given on behalf of subsidiaries (refer note 28)

- VLCC International LLC
- VLCC Intermational Inc

IT) Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company

Short-term employee benefits
Termination benefits
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

Post-employment gratuity are incunred at company level and hence not provided here.

also refer note 34 for employee share based payments.

1V) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

.

7 -
1As at Mareh 31,2021 _As at Marceh 31, 2020
32 20
7 -
1,900 1,900
9,283 9,283
i3 33
370 -
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
1,089 827
40 31
268 185
69 46
- 27
3,981 5,562
- 1,364
For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31, 2021 31,2020
209 331
4 8
212 39

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding

balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has recorded impairment of receivables relating to amounts ewed by related parties amounting
to INR 32 Lakhs {March 31, 2020: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related

party and the market in which the related party operates.

31 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, requires that the
board of directors of every eligible company, shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the average net profits
of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The
provision of CSR expenditure is not applicable to the company in view of losses in past 3 years.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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_ 32 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined contribution plians

The Company makes contribution towards employees® provident fund, and employees® state insurance plan scheme. Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to these defined
contribution schemes. The Company has recognized during the year as expense towards contribution to these plans as below:

For the year ended March For the year ended March

31,2021 31, 2020
Provident fund ) 351 590
Employees’ state insurance scheme and other funds 62 118
Total 413 717

b) Gratnity scheme

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Grafuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. This is a
funded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions to the VLCC Health Care Limited Employees Group
Gratuity Scheme("Gratuity Trust"). LIC policies are taken by the Gratuity Trust created by Company to cover the ljability of the Company.
The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment subject to a maximum of INR 20 Lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit or loss and the funded
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Change in benefit obligation

Present value of abligation as at the beginning of the year 736 666
Add: Current service cost 87 161
Add: Past setvice cost - -
Add: Interest cost 46 43
Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss* 76 (0
Less: Benefits paid (174) (79)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 771 736

* Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2020 is negative INR 36,625.

Change in plan assets

Plan assets at the beginning of the year 7 79
Add: Expected return on plan assets* 0 5
Add: Contribution by the Company . - -
Less: Benefits paid . - (79)
Add: Actuarial gain / (loss)** 0 1
Plan assets at the end of the year 7 7

* Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2021 is INR 11,817,
** Abgolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2021 is INR 12,127,

Present value of obligation 77 736
Less: Fair value of plan assets (7) {7}
Net assets 764 730
Liability/ (Asset) recognized in the financial statements 764 730
Current 247 124
Non-current ey 517 606
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32 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans (Cont'd)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net defined benefit Cost/(Income) included in Statement .
of Profit & Loss at peried end
Current service cost 87 10t
Add: Interest cost 46 43
Net cost 133 144
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Effect of Change in Financial Assumptions 249 39
Effect of Change in Demographic assumptions* (132) (0
Effect of Experience Adjustments (40} (39
Return on Plan Assets (excluding interest)** ()] 0
Total Remeasurements Recognised in OCI (Gain)/Loss 76 {0

* Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2020 is negative INR 7,263,
** Absolute amounts before rounding off as at March 31, 2021 is negative INR 12,137 (March 31, 2020: INR 33,072).

Financial assumptions March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate 4.57% 6.24%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 8.00% 4.50%
Demographic assuniptions
Retirement Age (years) 60 years 60 years
Mortality Rate IALM [2012-2014] [IALM [2012-2014]
Employee Turnover / Attrition Rate - All Ages 50% 15%
Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate next year 116 131
Composition of the plan assets is as follows:
Bond Fund 100% 160%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are as shown below:

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation — Discount Rate +1% (28) an
Defined Benefit Obligation — Discount Rate -1% ' 30 45
Defined Benefit Obligation — Salary Escalation Rate +1% 29 - 46
Defined Benefit Obligation — Salary Escalation Rate -1% (28) (42)
The expected benefit payments in future years is as follows: 3
March 31, 2021 NA 126
March 31, 2022 250 134
March 31, 2023 198 147
March 31, 2024 176 150
March 31, 2025 166 166
March 31, 2026 163 NA
March 31, 2026 te March 31, 2030 " NA 1,332
March 31, 2027 te March 31, 2031 734 NA

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 1.92 years (March 31, 2020: 5.27
years).

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code”) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/ interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will agsess the impact of the
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code begrrfase ective.  grool4 B

. A

<
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33 Sepment Reporting

The Company's operations predominanily relates to providing beauty and slimming services {wellness and beauty service) including sales of relaled producis
through wellness centres and vocational trainings at [ustitutes for imparting trainings relating ‘o beauty, slimming and fitness. Based on the management
approach as defined in Ind AS |08, the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on
analysis of variows perfonnance indicators pertaining to following two reporiable sepments;

{1} Slivming & beauty services (wellness and beauty service) wherein the Company has the business of maintaining and running beauly, slimming, fitness and
healih centres at various locations;

(i) Vocational training for impariing education relating te beauty and nuirition.

The Company operations are in India and thus no geagraphic seginent is required.

Sepment revenne and results

The expenses and income which are not directly aitributable to any business segment are shown 4 unallocable expenditure

fnet of unallocable income}.
Segment assels and Babilitics

Assets and liabilities that are direcily atiributable or allocabl

c to scgments are disclosed under cach reportable segment. All other assets and Nabilities arc

Wellness & Total Wellness & | Voeatignal Total
Reportable Segments Beauty services Yocational March M1, Beauty {raining March 31,
training institute 2021 services institote 2020
Revenne
Sales 15,679 3,775 19,454 17,654 6,789 34,443
Other Income 2,241 354 2,595 48 4 52
Dividend [ncome (Unallocated) {00 -
Totx] Revenue 17,920 4,129 22,449 27,702 5,793 34,495}
Cast of materials consumed/oods sold 3,354 343 3,697 4,762 488 5,250
Employee benefits expense 5,104 1,914 7078 8604 2389 10,993
Other expenses 2,110 1,122 4,232 7,904 2,232 10,136
Depreciation and amontization expense 4441 760 5,201 4,923 878 5,301
Total Exp 16,069 4,139 20,208 26,193 5,987 32,180
Segment Result 1,851 (L) 1,841 1,509 806 2,316
Segment Result {Unallocated) 400
Finance Costs othier than Interest on lease liabilitles {1,297) {1,624}
Interes| on lease liabilities (§,430) {341) {1,711) (1,719 (328) {2,047}
Finance Income 92 104
Net Joss after tax (735} {1,251)
Other Information
Wellness & Total Wellness & | Vocational Total
Reportable Segments Beauty services Vocational March 31, Beauty training March 31,
__|training institule 2021 services institule 2020
Sepment Assels 21,579 37 25,496 23711 4310 28,020
Unallecated Asseis:
Investment 11,183 11,183

Deferred tax assets 2,719 2,719
[Total Assets 39,398 41,922|

Scegment Liabilities 25,466 5,347 30,813 27445 5,176 32,620]
Unallocated Liabititles:

Loan, funds 4,656 4,563
Total Liabilities 35469 37,183
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure (including capital 395 112 506 644 26 729
ladvances and capital work in progress)

Depreciation and amortization
Depreeiation of property, plant & equipment 1,054 155 1,208 1,195 178 1,373
Amortization of imangible assels 81 0 , 81 85 [} 85
Amortization of right-of-use assels 3307 G035 3912 3,643 701 4343

The amount of revenue {Tom external customers broken down by location of the customets is shown in the table below:

Mareh 31,2021 March 31, 2020
India 19,454 34,439
Outside ndia - 4
Total revenue per statement of pront and loss 19,454 34,443

March 31,2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Non-current operating assets:
India 33,532 37,945
Quigide india - -
Total 33,532 37,045
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34 Disclosures on Employee share based paymenis
Employee Stock Option Scheme

In a general meeting held on June 26, 2007, the shareholders of the company through a special resolution approved an employee stock aption plan which provides for
grant of Stock Options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Company. The options are to be converted into one
equity share at a predetermined price determined al the time of Lhe grant. The options granted vest in a graded manner and are to be exercised within a period of 6
years from the date of vesting. Under the approved plan, the Company has issued 941,706 shares in tranches to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair market
valut determined on various dafe of issue and the trust is holding the shares on behalf of employees till the period the granted options are exercised by the employees
in accordance with the plan. Out of these, 450,193 Options have been exercised by 12 employees on May 04, 2015,

The ESOP plan 2007 was replaced/substituted with the approval of shareholders at general meeting held on January 12, 2016, with a new plan called "¥YLCC
Emplayee Stock Option Plan 2015" (ESOP Plan 20§ 5) for all the outstanding and not granted, lapsed options lying under the present VLCC Employee Stock Option
Plan 2007 as on December 11, 2015 had been transferred to the new Plan and ESOP Plan 2007 will continue only for options granted under that Plan, The Plan got
modified by Shareholders vide its meeting on Jan 10, 2019 and again on March 31, 2021 with respect 1o options Lo be granted to Managing Directar, The vesting of
the options to the Managing Director is afier 1 year from grant date. The Company granted 376,680 oplions to Managing Director on March 31, 2021 under ESOP
Plan 2015 and cancelled earlier grant given to Managing Director of the Company.,

In a general meeting held on March 31, 2021, the shareholders of the company through a special tesclution approved a new VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan
(ESOP Plan 202 [} which provides for grant of Stock Options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries lo acquire equity shares of the Company. The
options are to be converted into one equity share at a predetermined price determined at the time of the grant. The options granted vest in a graded marner except for
Managing Director and are to be exercised within a period of 6 years from the date of vesting, Under the approved plan, the company has made available 941,706
options for allotnent at fair market value on various dates of issue. The Company granted 376,680 oplions to Managing Director on March 31, 2021 under ESOP
Plan 2021 also, The sharcholders of the company alsa approved giving Option of equal or more of 1% of the capital to any employee under ESOP Plan 2021.

Employee stock options details as at the Balance Sheet date are as follows:

ESOP Plan 2007
During the year ended During the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

Particu} ' i : ighted

articulars Options Weighted average Options Weig I ¢ a.\ferage

(Numbers) exercise price per (Numbers) exXercise price per
eption (INR) aption (INR)
Options exercisable a¢ the end of the year: 50,000 56 60,000 78
Granted during the year: - - - -
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised during the year: - - - -
Lapsed/forfeited during the year: 16,000 56 10,000 196G
Options exercisable at the end of the year: 34,000 56 50,008 56
Qptions available for grant: - -
ESOP Flan 2015
During the year ended During the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Parti i

e Opiions | TS | oy | WM

(Numbers) option (INR) (Numbers) option (INR)

Options exercisable at the end of the year: 3,84,680 183 3,84,680 183
Granted during the year: 3,76,680 185 - -
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised during the year: - - - -
Lapsed/forfeited during the year: 3.84,680 183 - -
Options exercisable at the end of the year: 3,76,680 185 3,84,680 183
Options availablo for grant: 80,833 56,833
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ESQOP Plan 2021
During the yeor ended During the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
pds Options | COE eeper | Omtions | L e per
(Numbers) aption (INR) (Numbers) option (INRY
Options exercisable at the end of the year: - - - -
Granted during the year: 7.53,360 185 - -
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised duting the year: - - - -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year: - - - .
Options exercisable at the end of the year: 753,360 183 - -
Options available for grant: 188,346 - - -
Number of Options
granted & . .
ESOP Plan outstanding as on Yesting Period
March 31, 2021
ESOCP Plan 2007 34,000 | 1/3 - one year from grant date or on 1PQ, whichever is later
1/3 after | year from first vesiing date
1/3 after 2 year from first vesting date
ESQP Plan 2015 3,76,680 | | year from grant date
ESOP Plan 2021 3,76,680 |_1 year from grant date
ESOQP Plan 2021 3,76,680 1 1/3 - one year from grant date
1/3 - 2 years from grant date
13 - 3 years from grant date

The weighted average contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is 4-6 years (March 31, 2020: 4-6 years),

The range of exercise price for the options outstanding at the end of the year is INR 181.23 {March 31, 2020: INR 169.55).

The weighted average fair value of options granted under ESOP schemes, (computed using discounted cash flow and black Scholes method) during the year ended
March 31, 2021 is INR 226.86.

The following tables list the inputs 1o the models used for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2620:

March 31,2021  March 31,2020 *

Dividend yield (%) 0% -
Expected valatility (%) 47.73%- 50.11% -
Risk—ftee interest rate (%) 5.47%- 6.08% -
Expected life of share options (years) 4.6 years -
Weighted average share price (INR ) 185.00 -
Mode! used Black Scholes -

* No aption has been granied during the financial year ended March 31, 2020,

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and eusrent expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historichl volatility over a peried similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

There are no eplions in other Companies in the Company.
There are no non-market performance condilions existing as-at March 31, 2021 and Mareh 31, 2020.

(This space has been intentionally Ieft blank)
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35 Financlal instruments - Flnancial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings, and capital creditors. Furthet, the Company has given guarantee to varions banks

operations. The Comnpany’s principal financial assets inclodes security deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's senior level management oversees the management of these risks and is
supporied by team handling Treasury function that advises on the appropriale financial risk governance framework to mitigate potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the company.,

A, Market risk .
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instiumeat will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, The objective of market risk
management is {0 manage and control nmrket risk exposures within aceeplable parameters, while optimising the retumn.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, cutrency risk and other price risk, such as equily price risk and commodity risk,
The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. Sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the
effect of the assumed changes in respective market tisks. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and
oiher post-relirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial asssts and liabilities.

i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mluciuate because of changes in matket interest rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rares relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. Company does not
have any fixed rate borrowings as at year end.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.50% increase or decrease in the interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, the Company's profii before tax is affected througlh the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decreasein - Effect on profit/ loss

basis points before tax
March 31, 2021
INR Borrowings +350 (23}
INR Baorrowings - =50 23
Mareh 31, 2020
INR Borrowings +50 {23}
INR Borrowings -50 23

i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk (hat (he fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company’s

exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency). .

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases in currencies other than the Company's functional currency, which is INR. The
Company's financial state of affairs can be affected by movements in foreign currencies, primarily US Dollar, Euro and 8GD.

‘The Company does not hedge any foreign currency exposure as the amount involved is non material as of now.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

In equivalent INR Lakhs

As at As at Mareh 31, 2021 .As at Marcl.l i, 2_02(_’ »
Fimancial assets Financial linbilitics  Finaneial assets  Financial liabilitics
United States Dollar {USD) . 7 280 - 326 -
Singapore Dallar (SGD) - 268 - 185
EURO {EUR) - 56 - -
Total 7 604 - 511

The Company's exposure to foreign currency arises where Company holds financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in cwrency different from (he
fimctional currency of the Company. A reasonably possible strengthening (weakeniog) of the INR, US dollac or other foreign currencies against all other currencies at
March 31 would have affected the measurement of [inancial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equeity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below,
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35 Finaneial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Changein foreign  Effeet on profit .
CUITEnCY rate before tax
Mareh 31, 2021
US Dollars +5% (14)
-5% [4
SGD ' +5% (13
-5% 13
EURO +5% (3
=5% 3
’
March 31, 2020
US Dollars +5% 16
-5% (16)
SGD +5% 9
-5% (9

B. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fzils 1o meet its contractual obligations.

It respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure. Significant revenue is collected by the Company in
advarice before rendering the services to the retail customers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables {net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than & months More than ¢ Total
. months
Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2021 221 - 221
Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2020 188 30 218

C. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting th obligations associated with ils financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial agset. The Company's objective s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and Mexibility through the use of bank overdrafis and bank
loans, The Company’s approach to managing lquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitles when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s repulation, The Company closely monitors its liquidity
position and deploys 2 robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidity risk by mainfaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabililies, by continucusly
monitoring forecast and actual ¢ash flows, profile of financial assels and liabilitics, 1t maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an
optimised cost. The table below provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial liabilities

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Less than 1 year '
- Borrowings 1,320 1,746

= Lease Liabilities 3211 4,858

- Trade payables 7,293 © 7,852

- Other financial liabililies 1,692 1,066 -

Tatal . 13,515 15,523

Mare than 1 year ™
- Borrowings 2,241 2,256

- Lease liabilities 11,280 12,592

~ Other financial liabilities 103 100

Total 13,623 14,949

Other Current Liabilities
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36 Capital Management

The Company's policy is lo maintain strong capifal base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of business. The

management monitors the return on capiial and profitability.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher retusns that might be possible with higher Jevels of borrowing and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder vale,

Company menilors capital using gearing ratio whicl is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total equity plus underlying net debt. The Company’s policy is to
keep the gearing ratio below 50%, The Company measures underlying net debt as total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any
dues to subsidiaries or group company less cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of Capital management, total capital includes issued equity capital, share

premium and al) other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

Company's adjusted net debt fo equity ratio at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is as follows:
Geaving ratio

March 31,2021

March 31, 2020
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term
borrowings) {refer note 13(a)) 4,656 4,563
Less: cash and cash equivalents [refer B
note 7)) {2,369) {369}
Adjusted Net debt 2.287 4,193
Total Equity 3,028 4,739
Total Equity 3,928 4,739
Total Equity and nct debt 1 6,215 8,932
Capital and adjusted nct debt 6,215 8,932
Gearing ratio {Nct Debt/ Total Equity) I7% 47%

Ne chaoges were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

{This page has been intentionally left blank)
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37 Fair values

The management has assessed the fair value of nll the financial assets and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, security
deposits, other financial assets, investments, trade payables and other [inancial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts which is at amertised cost.

The carrying ameunts of other jtems carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximalion of their fair values.
Accordingly, the Company docs not have any financial instruments to be classified under three levels of fair value measurement hierarchy in accordance
with Ind AS 113, Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments.

Margh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars FVTPL  FVTOCI - A“‘;‘;‘:ud FVIPL  FVTOC! Amortized cost
ASSETS
Non-currcat asscts
Financial assets !
- Investments - - 11,183 - - 11,183
- Loans C - - 790 - - 661
- Other financial assels - - 74 - - 141
Currcnt assets
Financial assets
- Trade receivables - - 221 - - 218
- Loans - - 443 - - 534
- Cash and cash equivalents - - 2,369 - - 369
- Other financial assets - - 623 - - 144
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities .
- Borrowings - - 2,241 - - 2,256
- Lease liabilities - - 11,280 - - 12,592
- Other financial liabilities - - 103 - - 100
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings - - 1,320 - - 1,746
- Lease liabilities - - 3,211 - - 4,858
- Trade payable - - 7,293 - - 7.852
- Other financial liabilities - - 1,692 - - 1,066

Long term borrowings includes term loan ffom the bank which are contracted al (loating rates of interest, resel al short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying
value of such long term borrowings approximate their fair valve.
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38 Falr valoe hierarchy

All finaneial instraments for which fair valee is recognised or disclosed ore cotegorised within the fair value hieravchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vobue measurement as a whote,

Level 1: This level of hierarchy Includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quuted (anadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. .

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial asscts that ate measured using inputs, othier than quoted prices included within
Jevel 1, that arc observable for such fems, directly or indirectly.

Level 3: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation medel based on assumptiens that are neither supported by
prices froma observable cument market transactions in the same instruments nor based on available market data,

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.
The following toble provides the fair value measurcment hicrarchy of the Company®s assets and labiliies:

Quuniitative disclosores falr valua measurement hierarchy for assets as st March 31, 2021, March 11, 2020 and March 31,
2019:

Fair value messurement using

Quoted prices in Slgnificant Significont
active turkets observable inputs (waobservable inputs

{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Particalars Tatal

Fii ial assets ed at falr valoe

[Investments at fair value throngh profit or|
loss

Investments at foir value through other
comprehensive income

Otber financial assets - - - -

Fivunciol liabilities measured at foir
value

Other financial liabfljiies - - - -

There are no transfer between levels during the period ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and Morch 3 1,2019,
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39 Estimation uncertainty relating to the global heolth pandemic on COVID-19:
In the last month of FY2020, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into 2 global crisis foreing governments to enforce lock-
downs of all economic activity. Abrupt closure of business activities during month of from April to June, 2020 due to COVID.19
lockdown impacted Company operations. Tha Company instituled cost restructuring ises and efficiency improv ts which
sesulted in savings through continued focus an cast controls process efficiencies that results in profitable growth in the currant
cconomic scenurio, The Company has taken sieps to opnn-nzc its expenses including putting on hold the discretionary expenses,

salary cuts and leave without pay ete. The Comp ined robuzt cn engagement and launched new post Covid related
kages to attract % ¢.g. preventive health care serviees, immunity boosting packages.
The country niso witgessed second wave of COVID-19 in April 202]. The Company has continued its cost optimization ise to

“achieve proficable growth and conserve cash,

There are no matcrial changes or commiitments alfecting the financial position of the Company which have occerred betweon the enil
of the fipancial year and the date of authorisation of financial statements, The Cotnpany continues 1o be confident of realising the
carcying value of assets as well as cominuing its operations.

40 Previous yeor figures hove been reclassified 10 confinm to current year's classification.

Ax per our report of ever dute
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